
From: Philip.Christensen
To: Lester.Balsillie; Darren.Stahl
Cc: Jody.Fobe
Subject: FW: TCCL OLD CROW 100% SOR R1 Cost Report
Date: August 21, 2020 9:35:47 AM
Attachments: TCCL OLD CROW 10-PLEX & HWC with SCHEDULE OF RISK 100% SOR CLASS C COST ESTIMATE 2020.07.22 -

R1.pdf
image002.png

Here is the updated costing from the consultant. I was sure this was sent around but regardless.

In conversation with VGG regarding housing costs in the community, the figure  per unit was
mentioned, based on their current elders facility. Keep in mind this is a ballpark and may not reflect
current conditions.

I am waiting for a call back on the cost of ad-freeze piles vs thermopiles. There may be savings here
but at what long term cost? 

Philip Christensen, MAA, MRAIC, Int’l. Assoc. AIA, LEED® AP
Architect
Highways and Public Works | PMD - FMRS |
| P 867 667 3588 | C 867-332-5195 | Yukon.ca

From: Alan Nessick <Alan.Nessick@tccl.ca> 
Sent: July 22, 2020 2:41 PM
To: Philip.Christensen <Philip.Christensen@gov.yk.ca>
Subject: TCCL OLD CROW 100% SOR R1 Cost Report

Phil, please find attached the revised cost report based on our conference call last week.

Any questions, please call.

Best regards,

Alan Nessick PQS - Fellow | Quantity Surveyor
alan.nessick@tccl.ca
t) 403.291.5566 x 223
c) 587.436.9029

Calgary - #208, 2725 – 12th Street NE
Edmonton - #2, 2207 – 90B Street SW

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Construction Cost Consultants & Professional Quantity Surveyors

This communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, and may contain confidential, personal and or privileged
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information. Please contact us immediately if you are not the intended recipient. Do not copy, distribute or take action relying on it. Any
communication received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed.
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1.2 Purpose 
 
This report is intended to provide a practical analysis of construction costs for new remote multi-unit 
housing and a healthcare facility in Old Crow, Yukon. All scope/cost item exceptions are listed below in 
section 1.4 Exclusions. 
 
1.3 Methodology 
 
Where possible, elements have been assessed or measured, then priced at rates considered 
competitive for a project of this type. This report is developed using standardized methods and 
techniques. Formatting of the report in accordance with the following documents: 
 
 Canadian Institute of Quantity Surveyors. "Elemental Cost Analysis-Method of 
 Measurement and Pricing" (Toronto ON, Canada: Canadian Institute of Quantity 
 Surveyors, 1990). 

 Construction Specifications Institute. "UniFormat™: A Uniform Classification of 
 Construction Systems and Assemblies"(Alexandria VA, USA: The Construction 
 Specifications Institute, 2010 Edition). 

 Construction Specifications Institute. "MasterFormat 2010™" (Alexandria VA, USA:  
 The Construction Specifications Institute, 2010 Edition). 
 
Costing for the estimated areas of work is developed using the historical data of similar projects. 
Consideration is made to include for project complexity, geographic location, and current market pricing. 
 
1.4 Exclusions  
 
This analysis excludes the following: 
 

a. GST 
b. Owner’s independent consultants (i.e. Quantity Surveyor, Commissioning, etc.) 
c. Project management costs & disbursements 
d. Design bridging consultants 
e. Independent testing (including air monitoring) 
f. Removal contaminated / organic soils 
g. Escalation beyond July 2020 
h. Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment (FF&E) 
i. IT & specialist equipment 
j. Landscaping & planting 
k. Off-sites including utilities, service upgrades, site development & access, levies, etc. 
l. Premium time working 
m. Decanting costs 

 
 

2. DOCUMENTATION 
 
This report has been prepared from documentation supplied by: 
 

Bridging Design Consultant  Stantec Architecture Ltd. 

Geotechnical Tetra Tech 
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The basis for this estimate is the 100% submission of the Statement of Requirements Report including 
drawings and specifications dated May 26th, 2020 and received on June 2, 2020 with subsequent notes, 
comments, and updates received from the consultants. Additionally, this estimate is based on the email 
dated June 1, 2020 from Philip Christensen of the Government of Yukon for the agreed risk schedule. 
This revised cost report is a result of comments, adjustments and further discussions with the client 
team including a video conference meeting on July 16, 2020 based on our June 22, 2020 cost report 
submission.  

 

3. COSTING 
 
3.1 Cost Base:  
 
The basic capital dollars are expressed in current July 2020 dollars, that is, as if the project were 
tendered in July 2020.  
 
COVID 19 has brought with it uncertainties regarding the global economy and specifically for 
construction project delay notices as a result of force majeure.  The degree of impact to projects at the 
preconstruction stage is continually changing, however, the risk probability of delay or shutdown are 
factors that require increased consideration. 
 
Historically, low interest rates would stimulate investment and capital ventures, however, we believe that 
in the near term, the current uncertain environment outweighs investment decisions, and therefore less 
projects will proceed to tender stage. We believe that as industry activity reduces, particularly as 
developers and Government defer or cancel projects, escalation and market impacts will decrease. 
Indicators are that as fewer projects are tendered, more will be at an increased value with lower cost. 
 
We expect a trend in increased number of bidders, providing better investor "value" through 
competition.  Contractors will reduce costs and take on slightly higher cost risks to secure projects and 
maintain work force.  However, to mitigate the execution risks, pricing may reflect increased 
requirements for site health and safety, potentially longer durations, and allowances for project delays, 
shutdowns, etc.  To cover these items and other anticipated risks a risk schedule was prepared, agreed 
to and included in Section 8 and 9. We have updated the risk schedule, previously submitted to reflect 
the updated construction costs based on the 100% scope of requirements documentation submitted. 
 
3.2 Cost Predictability 
 
Pricing by the PQS reflects probable construction costs obtainable in the location of the project as of the 
date of the report and is a determination of fair market value for the construction of this project and 
should not be taken as a prediction of low bid.  

Typically, pricing assumes competitive bidding for every portion of the construction works including all 
subcontractors as well as the general contractor and assumes a minimum of three (3) bidders. If fewer 
bids are received, the bid results can be expected to be higher.  

For an estimate / cost analysis at Conceptual Design (Class “C”) the industry standard level of accuracy 
is between 15% and 20%. 

3.3 Allowances / Contingencies:  
 
As this project is currently at Schematic Design the following allowances have been included:  
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6.0  UNIFORMAT ELEMENTAL COST SUMMARY 
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7.0 DETAILED ELEMENTAL ESTIMATE 
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From: Jennifer.Macgillivray
To: Karen.Chan; Colin.McDowell
Cc: Natasha.Phillips; Ben.Hancock; Nick.Rodger; Peter.Blum; Darren.Stahl
Subject: FW: Tetra Tech Document on Thermopiles for Old Crow - Stamped
Date: January 6, 2021 9:50:40 AM
Attachments: Memo to YG - Information on Standard Adfreeze Piles and Thermopiles for Old Crow IFU.pdf

Old Crow HWC - 10-Plex Foundation Info Note (4).docx
Thermopile Foundations .pdf
image001.png
image002.png

FYI, this is to support the Ministerial conversation this morning in Old Crow.
 
Jenn

Jennifer Macgillivray, NCIDQ, PMP, MBA
Assistant Deputy Minister
Highways and Public Works| Property Management Division
C 867-334-1000 | Yukon.ca

 
 

From: Priyank.Thatte <Priyank.Thatte@gov.yk.ca> 
Sent: January 5, 2021 3:18 PM
To: Paul.McConnell <Paul.McConnell@gov.yk.ca>; Krysten.Johnson <Krysten.Johnson@gov.yk.ca>
Cc: Jennifer.Macgillivray <Jennifer.Macgillivray@gov.yk.ca>
Subject: Tetra Tech Document on Thermopiles for Old Crow - Stamped
 

Hello Paul,
Please see attached a technical memo from Tetratech. It has the same messages we had in
our internal briefing note but presented in a more technical format.
 
I’ve attached yesterday’s internal messaging note for your background as well since it
contains responses to some sentiments we’ve heard.
 
A third pdf with installation examples also attached.
 
Let me know if you have follow up questions.
 
/Priyank
 

Priyank Thatté
Director, Strategic Initiatives
Highways and Public Works | C: 867-334-7378
Strategic Initiatives Branch | Dempster Fibre Project | Green

Infrastructure Program
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 Background of Thermo-Helical Piles   

Originally developed by Arctic Foundations Inc.  in Anchorage Alaska.  Thermosyphon technology has been used as a foundation 

solution since the early 1960’s.  Canadian use of the technology and solutions began in the early 1980’s through Arctic Foundations 

of Canada Inc.  Since that time Thermosyphons have been used in hundreds of installations across the Canadian Arctic.   

Thermopiles and Thermo-Helical Piles are specific applications of thermosyphon technology.  These specially designed piles 

incorporate a sealed and capped piping design which houses liquid Carbon Dioxide (CO2) refrigerant to significantly lower the 

adjacent ground temperature and greatly increase the loading capability over traditional adfreeze piles.  By lowering the ground 

temperature throughout the pile, this design also ensures long foundation life in the face of increasing climate change.    

The use of CO2 as a refrigerant is by far the most environmentally friendly option and in the concentrations found in our technology 

is considered environmentally benign.  Once charged, the piles remain operational for the life of the system.  There are no moving 

parts and no maintenance requirements for the foundation.  A yearly inspection of the piles is recommended and can easily be 

completed by local personnel.  A step-by-step process for inspection will be provided by Arctic Foundations of Canada upon 

completion of the foundation installation.    

All Thermosyphons (including Thermopiles) are designed, constructed, and installed in strict accordance with the current CSA S500 

Thermosyphon Foundations for Building in Permafrost Regions Standard.  Arctic Foundations of Canada continues to be involved in 

the ongoing updating and development, ensuring that our products meet and exceed this recently developed national standard.  

Our modern day system designs are developed in partnership with recognized Canadian and international engineering experts in 

this specific design field.   

Installation Examples 

Thermopiles have been extensively used in Alaska and are rapidly becoming a foundation solution in the Canadian Arctic to allow 

for long term foundations in an increasingly warm climate.  Below are examples of Thermo-Helical Pile Foundations.  

 

Inuvik RCMP Building – Inuvik NT  

Completed in 2015, this foundation comprised of 128 Thermo-Helical Piles designed to overcome the challenging geotechnical site 

conditions as well as meet the planned 50yr design life of the structure.  

0044
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Nullagivik Hotel – Kotzebue, AK 

Foundation comprised of 213 Thermopiles 
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Manilaq Health Centre – Kotzebue, AK 

Thermopile foundation completed for new hospital complex.  
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Yukon – Kuskokwim Recreational Aquatic Health and Safety Centre – Bethel, AK  

Recent Recreational centre completed on a Thermopile foundation. (photo credit to Ken Graham Photography) Work completed by 

Arctic Foundations Inc.  
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Information Note               
Old Crow Health and Wellness Centre 
and 10-plex – Pile Foundation  
 

Highways and 
Public Works 

 

Highways and Public Works Date prepared: January 4th, 2020  
Page 1 of 3 

 

This note provides background information on the recommended 
Thermopile type foundation.  

Issue:  

• The geotechnical analysis for this project provided a recommended 
Thermopile foundation type.   

 
  

Key Points and Thermopile foundation summary description: 

1. Thermopiles follow CSA standards and are in use elsewhere in the Canadian 
Arctic and in particular in Alaska where there are thousands of piles installed: 
• Thermopiles are a steel pipe pile system, (ad-freeze system) with the addition of 

refrigeration loops. These loops keep the ground cool through the condensing of carbon 
dioxide gas in the loops driven by the temperature difference between the air and the 
ground. When the ground temperature is warmer than the air temperature, (in winter) 
they extract heat from the ground, when the ground temperature is cooler than the air 
temperature (summer) they lie dormant.  

• This system is recommended because the geotechnical site investigation for this site 
shows an ice rich site which will be subject to degradation quickly through warming and 
subsequent conduction, the refrigeration loops will assist in the perseveration of the 
permafrost under the building maximizing the building lifespan. 

• Thermosyphon systems used for projects in other communities in the Yukon and across 
the north are also refrigeration systems although the approach is quite different, a matt 
system is used for example and the foundations are shallow, they are not appropriate 
for this site. 

• Thermopiles were installed for the Inuvik RCMP facility in 2015/16 and are performing 
well.  Thermopiles are being installed for the new International Airports in Iqaluit and 
Rankin Inlet and have been used for many years in numerous locations in Alaska, failure 
is extremely rare at (1-2% likelihood); if a refrigeration loop fails the pile will still 
maintain strength as an ad-freeze pile. 
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Highways and Public Works Date prepared: January 4th, 2020  
Page 2 of 3 

 

• As with all pile installations, ad-freeze or otherwise the temperature of the ground 
around the piles will be checked on a regular basis to ensure the ground temperature is 
as expected and planned for during design.   

2. Local economic benefits are important to us, contractors in Old Crow can do 
this work: 
• The conceptual design shows an estimated pile diameter of 300 mm and depth of 10 m, 

requiring a bore-hole diameter of 450 mm.  These figures are subject to change during 
the final design stage, for example, the pile diameter could be reduced to 200 mm with 
a slight depth increase and borehole diameter of 350 mm. 

• Porcupine Enterprises noted that the existing drill rig located in Old Crow is capable of 
drilling holes in permafrost up to 500 – 600 mm in diameter, to depths up to 15 metres.   
The recommended design should align with the capacity of the rig used previously to 
install the typical “slotted” Ad-freeze piles in Old Crow.  There is no difference in drilling 
and pile installation methodology for thermopiles vs ad freeze piles.   

• The ad-freeze piles used for the Community Centre and Elders’ Complex projects were 
engineered to have a 30-year design life. These piles were installed using the existing 
drill rig and are 200 mm in diameter to depths of about 15 m. 

3. This solution provides maximum protection from permafrost degradation: 
• “Ad-freeze” systems depend on the bond between the steel pipe and surrounding 

frozen ground.  The colder the pipe and ground, the stronger the bond.  Thermopiles will 
slow the natural permafrost degradation and help to ensure maintenance of the bond 
strength thereby reducing the chances of building movement causing damage. 

• Neither ad-freeze nor Thermopile systems will “fail” catastrophically, rather due to 
climate change, the permafrost will gradually degrade and settlement will occur.  After 
30 years, with ad-freeze (non-Thermopile) piles, building settlement can be expected at 
an increased rate, requiring more maintenance to repair damage and adjust building 
levels, with Thermopiles there will be less settlement thereby extending the building life. 

4. This is an environmentally friendly solution, and does not inject anything into 
the ground. 
• Thermopiles are fully commissioned and tested to confirm their integrity, if there is any 

issue they can be fixed before they are loaded. 
• CO2 is contained in the seamless, sealed, refrigeration loops at a pressure a fraction of 

that contained in a typical fire extinguisher.  The gas in the loops circulates by passive 
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convection.  Heat from the ground is carried by the gas to the top of the loops, it is then 
is transferred to the cold winter air through radiating fins.  The gas condenses to liquid 
which flows back down the pipe. 

• No CO2 is released to atmosphere or to the ground.  The CO2 will remain for the life of 
the system and is at a concentration that is considered environmentally benign. 

• This type of system has proven to be very reliable.  The chances of a valve failure are 
considered to be 1-2%, however, if something hits a valve (located at the top of the pile 
under the building) causing a leak, the amount of gas released to atmosphere would be 
minimal in any case and quickly disperse.   

• The manufacturer of these piles routinely ships CO2 across the north, including by air. 
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From: Jennifer.Macgillivray
To: Colin.McDowell; Karen.Chan
Cc: Ben.Hancock; Peter.Blum; Natasha.Phillips; Darren.Stahl
Subject: Foundation Decision & schedule
Date: January 6, 2021 1:32:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Team,
 
Just an update, 

The tender will be extended until the 28th of January due to requests from bidders.
 
We are still on schedule and will continue to be if:
 

 
Jenn
 
 
 

Jennifer Macgillivray, NCIDQ, PMP, MBA
Assistant Deputy Minister
Highways and Public Works| Property Management Division
C 867-334-1000 | Yukon.ca
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From: Darren.Stahl
To: Colin.McDowell
Subject: RE: Old Crow Update
Date: April 9, 2021 9:34:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

There is no actual construction slated for this FY, only site prep. The foundation thermopiles are not
going to be installed the winter of 2021 which will allow for a late winter early spring construction
start.
 
Darren
 

From: Colin.McDowell 
Sent: April 9, 2021 9:27 AM
To: Darren.Stahl <Darren.Stahl@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: Old Crow Update
 
Thanks Darren – one more thing. We say actual construction (presumably of the 10 plex) is
scheduled to start in Spring 2022 – is that correct? I had thought (perhaps incorrectly) that the 10
plex was going up first (starting this year) and the health centre would follow in 2022. Can you
confirm the order and timing of construction?
Thanks
 
 

Colin McDowell
Vice President | Operations
Yukon Housing Corporation
T 867-334-4231 | F 867-393-6274 | Yukon.ca

 
 

From: Darren.Stahl 
Sent: April 9, 2021 9:16 AM
To: Colin.McDowell <Colin.McDowell@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: Old Crow Update
 
Great catch!!
 
Sorry about that.
See below
 
Ketza/TSL formed a partnership and retained  DGBK Architects from Vancouver . DGBK has included
local firm, Northern Front Studios as part of the design team.
 
Wildstone Construction Group partnered with local design firm KZA
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From: Colin.McDowell 
Sent: April 9, 2021 9:10 AM
To: Darren.Stahl <Darren.Stahl@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: Old Crow Update
 
Thanks – Just a quick question; I thought we discussed KZA having been partnered with Wildstone,
not Ketza???
 
 

Colin McDowell
Vice President | Operations
Yukon Housing Corporation
T 867-334-4231 | F 867-393-6274 | Yukon.ca

 
 

From: Darren.Stahl 
Sent: April 9, 2021 8:58 AM
To: Colin.McDowell <Colin.McDowell@yukon.ca>
Subject: FW: Old Crow Update
 
Colin
 
The following is a short update on the Old Crow project as requested.
 
If you would like this more in-depth please let me know.
 
Darren
 
 
 
Yukon Housing Corporations Old Crow 10 plex community housing project has now been awarded.
The 10 plex is a joint project with Health and Social Services Health and Wellness Center. This
combined project will be project managing by HPW on behalf of YHC and H&SS
The design build RFP tender closed on Feb. 26, 2021 which had two compliant bids. Wildstone
Construction partnering with DGBK Architects from Vancouver and Ketza/TSL partnering with local
design firm KZA were the two compliant bids.
Following RFP evaluations and price envelopes, a contract was awarded to Ketza/TSL for $44.88M.
We will learn in the coming days what portion of the value is directly attributed to the 10 plex. The
budget for the 10 plex will be held and managed by HPW.
Construction schedule for this fiscal year includes some of the following components;

o   Contractor is working on securing gravel for pad structure and site.
o   Working with ATCO for power infrastructure requirements.
o   Working on foundation design
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o   Preparing a shipping plan for foundation thermopiles
o   Coordinating contractors and equipment for thermopile installation in winter of

2021/2022
Actual construction is scheduled to begin in the spring on 2022 with substantial completion in
December of the same year.
Throughout the design and construction of the project, YHC staff will be working closely with HPW as
support and to ensure YHC’s requirements are met in the design of the project as well as throughout
the construction of the new 10 plex.
Once the final design has been completed we will share the plans for further information.
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Access.Analyst

From: Peter.Blum
Sent: May 27, 2021 9:50 AM
To: Natasha.Phillips; Darren.Stahl
Cc: Nick.Rodger
Subject: Old Crow HWC - 10-Plex Monthly Progress Update
Attachments: Old Crow HWC - 10-Plex Project Update 2021.05 (003).pdf

Natasha/Darren; 
Here is the two page monthly update that we are providing for our Minister. It has the same format and content as our 
other major project updates for consistency. 

Please review and let me know if you have any questions, comments or suggestions. I believe Priyank will share it with 
the Steering Committee for discussion at the next meeting (June 2nd). 

Thanks, 
Peter B. 

Peter Blum, PMP 
Senior Building Program Manager 
Department of Highways and Public Works | Major Infrastructure Division 
C 867-336-0314 | Yukon.ca 
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Access.Analyst

From: Peter.Blum
Sent: June 23, 2021 3:14 PM
To: Priyank.Thatte; Karen.Chan; Colin.McDowell; Amy.Riske; Dale.Cheeseman; Nick.Rodger; 

Darren.Stahl; Linda.Steinbach; Genibeth.Genito
Subject: 20210614_NR_Old Crow HWC_construction begins (003)
Attachments: 20210614_NR_Old Crow HWC_construction begins (003).docx

All; 
Attached is a draft news release about the start of site development in Old Crow planned for about mid-July. It has been 
through HPW, HSS and YHC Communications. We are working on including a couple of exterior perspective images. The 
draft has not yet been forwarded to VGFN/VGG – pending Steering Committee review/comments. 

The message box and Q&S section will be updated separately as things progress. 

Please let me know if you have questions or comments and whether the draft version can be forwarded to VGFN/VGG. 
We will then ask if Chief Tizaya-Tamm wants to add a quote. Ketza TSL are also being asked if they have a quote. 

Thanks, 
Peter B. 

Peter Blum, PMP 
Senior Building Program Manager 
Department of Highways and Public Works | Major Infrastructure Division 
C 867-336-0314 | Yukon.ca 
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• A number of steel Thermopiles are drilled into the ground to carry a building’s structural load 
while also extracting heat during cold winter months. This helps to keep the soil frozen, 
minimizing impacts to permafrost and providing structural integrity where typical concrete or 
similar horizontal footings are not feasible. 

• The Health and Wellness Centre is the first to be designed and constructed based on a generic 
functional program developed by the departments of Health and Social Services and Highways 
and Public Works for smaller Yukon communities.  It will provide healthcare services including 
homecare, mental health, social services, dental care, telehealth and emergency care. 

Contact 

Renee Francoeur 
Cabinet Communications 
867-334-9194 
renee.francoeur@yukon.ca 

Diana Dryburgh-Moraal 
Communications, Highways and Public Works 
867-332-3568 
diana.dryburgh-moraal@yukon.ca  

News release #21-xxx 

Article teaser 

We are breaking ground and starting pre-construction work on two new facilities in Old Crow.  

Tweet 

Construction work is underway on the Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex housing complex in Old 
Crow. First up is site preparation: that means clearing the ground and laying gravel in preparation for the 
Thermopile foundation to be installed over the winter. 

Facebook 

Construction work is underway on the Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex housing complex in Old 
Crow. First up is site preparation: that means clearing the ground and laying gravel in preparation for the 
Thermopile foundation to be installed over the winter. 

 
Message box 
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Subject: Old Crow Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex 
Lead department: HPW 
Spokesperson: HPW: Peter Blum, Nick Rodger or Priyank Thatte 
Housing/Health specific questions to be redirected to YHC/HSS 
 

• The Government of Yukon is working to improve and modernize the 
services available in Old Crow through the construction of new, 
efficient facilities that meet community needs. 

• Ketza TSL Construction Ltd. was awarded this contract in March 
2021 and has now started construction on the Health and Wellness 
Centre and 10-Plex. 

• Construction on the 10-Plex is expected to be complete by late 2022 
and the Health and Wellness Centre is expected to be complete by 
late 2023. 

• The 10-plex in Old Crow is going to be a mixed use building. This 
means that it will be available to house different client groups from 
the community, including seniors, families and individuals – whether 
they are staff or rent-geared-to-income tenants. The housing project 
will also help support the recruitment and retention of qualified 
government staff in the community. 

• We are pleased to work with our partners on this ambitious and 
logistically-challenging project. 

Questions and answers 

Q. What is a Thermopile and how does it work? 

A. A Thermopile foundation system is a series of individual hollow steel 
sealed tubes filled with carbon-dioxide gas, which extend from about 15 
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metres below to 2 metres above the ground level.  Steel fins are fixed to 
the portion above ground. When the air is colder than the ground during 
winter months, heat is extracted from the soil and radiated to the air, 
similar to how a refrigerator works. This is a passive system having no 
moving parts, and using no energy. 

 

Q. Who will live in the 10-plex? 

A. Yukon Housing Corporation will work in partnership with the community 
of Old Crow to determine the best use of the units and ensure we use 
the asset to meet the highest community priorities. The Yukon Housing 
Corporation will be responsible for managing the 10 Plex.  This will 
include allocation of units for nurses,  and other staff and visiting 
professionals, and amongst other housing needs.  The 10-Plex will 
include a single two-bedroom unit allocated to the VGFN for its 
exclusive use. 

Q. What size are the units? 

A. The 10-unit community housing building will have: 

• 5 - 2 bedroom units (1 Barrier Free) 
• 4 - 1 bedroom units (1 Barrier Free) 
• 1 - 2 bedroom unit set aside for VGFN - Barrier Free 

Q. Will families (children) be allowed in these units? 

A. Yes, families with children can be allocated a two-bedroom unit. YHC 
follows the National Occupancy Standards which would mean a couple 
or single parent with two same gender children (family of 3-4) or a 
couple or single parent with one child (family of 2-3) could be allocated 
a two-bedroom unit. 

Q. Will YHC allocate more units for employee housing? 

A. YHC understands from the department of Health and Social Services 
that more employee housing will be needed to meet the staffing needs 
at the new Health Centre. Yukon Housing Corporation will work in 
partnership with the community of Old Crow to determine the best use 
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Access.Analyst

From: Peter.Blum
Sent: July 14, 2021 11:54 AM
To: Priyank.Thatte; Karen.Chan; Colin.McDowell; Amy.Riske; Darren.Stahl; Nick.Rodger; 

Linda.Steinbach; Genibeth.Genito
Cc: Dale.Cheeseman
Subject: RE: Old Crow HWC - 10Plex Steering Committee
Attachments: 20210614_NR_Old Crow HWC_construction begins_DM approved.docx

All; 
As discussed this morning, here is the latest version of the news release.  It was just confirmed that it has been 
approved by Cab Comms and is scheduled to be issued at 9a.m. this Friday. 
Thanks, 
Peter B. 

Peter Blum, PMP 
Senior Building Program Manager 
Department of Highways and Public Works | Major Infrastructure Division 
C 867-336-0314 | Peter.Blum@Yukon.ca 
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FOR RELEASE  
Month date, 2021 

Construction started on Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex housing 
unit in Old Crow 

Construction work is underway on the Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex housing complex in Old 
Crow. 

The first phase of construction is site preparation. This includes clearing and grubbing the site, and 
putting in a gravel pad. Later this year, Thermopiles – for the foundation – will be shipped by air to the 
community, to be drilled and installed over the winter. Work on the building structure itself will start next 
spring. 

Planning for these facilities has been underway for several years. Engagement with the Vuntut Gwitchin 
First Nation included negotiation of a long-term land lease agreement to build and operate the two 
facilities on Settlement Land. 

The 10-Plex will be completed in late 2022 and the Health and Wellness Centre will be completed by 
late 2023. 

Quotes 

This government is committed to making investments across Yukon to build healthy, vibrant 
communities. This project will replace Old Crow’s aging health centre, increase the number of affordable 
housing units and create jobs in the community. I look forward to seeing the engineering feats to come 
on this ambitious and logistically complicated project. 
– Minister of Highways and Public Works Nils Clarke 

The Government of Yukon is pleased to be moving forward with the Vuntut Gwitchin First Nation on the 
Old Crow Health and Wellness Centre and 10-Plex Housing unit project. The co-location of health and 
wellness related services in the new Health and Wellness Centre is an important step forward and 
supports the recommendations of the Putting People First Report by providing for more holistic, whole-
person care by integrated, interdisciplinary teams.  

– Minister of Health and Social Services Tracy-Anne McPhee 

The Old Crow 10-Plex is a significant investment in housing in the Old Crow community. Designed as a 
mixed-use building, this project will enable us to respond to changing housing needs in the community. 
Supporting the vision and objectives of the Housing Action Plan and Aging in Place Action Plan, this 
project demonstrates collaboration between different levels of government to address community needs 
in the Yukon. This project will also boost Yukon’s economy and generate construction jobs. We are 
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excited to see families and individuals get access to safe, affordable homes and improve their quality of 
life.  
– Minister responsible for the Yukon Housing Corporation Ranj Pillai 

These long-awaited buildings will have a significant impact on our community’s health and wellness and 
our current housing shortage. The first phase of construction is an exciting milestone for our Government 
and our people. We are eagerly anticipating the overdue replacement of our health centre, built in the 
1970s. The new centre will facilitate a collaborative approach to health and social needs, while the 10-
unit housing complex will help provide other housing that will change lives in Old Crow.  
– Vuntut Gwitchin Government Chief Dana Tizya-Tramm 

This project means more than bricks and mortar to Ketza TSL Construction Ltd; the healthy development 
of our communities is so vital.  A Health and Wellness Centre & 10-Plex in Old Crow will not only benefit 
families now, but future generations and we are grateful to be part of the team for this impactful 
investment in the community 
– Ketza TSL Construction Ltd. General Manager Eric Brohman 

Quick facts 

• The design-build contract for the project was awarded to Ketza TSL Construction in March 2021 
for $44.8 million. 

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

Q. Will there be a winter road? 

A. Discussions around construction of a winter road are still ongoing. 

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
moving parts, and using no energy.  The system extracts heat from the 
ground, thereby limiting adverse effects of climate change and thawing 
of the permafrost. 

 

Q. Who will live in the 10-plex? 

A. Yukon Housing Corporation will work in partnership with the community 
of Old Crow to determine the best use of the units and ensure we use 
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the asset to meet the highest community priorities. This will include 
allocation of units for nurses, staff and visiting professionals, amongst 
other housing needs. The 10-Plex will include a single two-bedroom unit 
allocated to the VGFN for its exclusive use. 

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
the asset to meet the highest community priorities. 

Q. Why was a Land Lease Agreement needed and why couldn’t the 
new building be in the same location as the existing one? 

A. There is a lack of Government of Yukon land available in the community 
of the size needed for this project.  The existing Health Centre needs to 
remain operational until completion of the new project. 

Q. What will happen to the old Nurses Residence and Health Centre? 

A. The existing facility will be assessed as a separate future project to 
determine options for its use or decommissioning. 

Q. Will there be an ambulance station? 
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A. Ambulance Emergency Medical Services are provided by the 
department of Community Services.  The generic functional program 
includes an “add-on module” for communities with highway access and 
larger areas and populations.  Since Old Crow is a “fly-in” community, 
ambulance services are currently not included in this project. 

 

 

0071




